
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Steve Gottlieb, Michael W. Hutson, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 

   

January 14, 2014 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – December 10, 2013 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 745) – Proposed Amber Town 

Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 
21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – Proposed 

Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road), 
Section 22, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted 

Living Facilities 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hunters Park, 21 units/lots, East 

side of John R between Tucker and Mayflower (5390 John R), Section 12, Currently Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURN 

 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on December 10, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-12-094 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-12-095 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the November 26, 2013 Special/Study meeting 
as published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 411) – Proposed The Alan Group Office, Southeast Corner of Bellingham 
and Brinston (PID# 88-20-26-428-031), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan application.  
He stated that the parking requirements are met, a correction to his report dated 
November 28, 2013.  Mr. Carlisle recommended approval of the Special Use Request 
and Preliminary Site Plan application conditioned on the applicant addressing the items 
identified in his report as part of the Final Site Plan submittal. 
 
Scott Bowers of Bowers and Associates Architects was present to represent the 
applicant.  He addressed details of the screen wall and displayed color renderings, 
elevations and color samples. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Screen wall; i.e., brick mold, poured on site, opacity of gates. 
• Accolades to applicant on proposed development. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-12-096 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed office building and outdoor storage yard, located at the southeast corner of 
Bellingham and Brinston (PID# 88-20-26-428-031), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Relocate the handicapped parking adjacent to the building. 
2. Correct the location of bike parking. 
3. Submit outdoor storage wall detail. 
4. Submit color details. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REZONING REQUEST 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 745) – Proposed 

Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town 
Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Rezoning Request application.  He informed the Board the 
Rezoning Request only is before the Board this evening; the conceptual site plan 
provided by the applicant is illustrative only and should not be considered in the Board’s 
decision.  Mr. Carlisle recommended approval of the Rezoning Request for the reasons 
as stated in his report, dated December 5, 2013. 
 
Mr. Hutson advised the Board that his firm in previous years has represented the 
applicant but he feels there is no conflict of interest on his part.  It was the consensus of 
the Board that no conflict of interest exists. 
 
Present were the applicant, Jerome Amber of Amber Properties Company, and Dennis 
Cowan of Plunkett Cooney. 
 
Mr. Cowan said his firm is excited to represent the Amber Properties Company 
proposed development in Troy.  He said contact was made with the property owners 
within the radius of the public hearing notification and to date no responses or 
comments were received.  Mr. Cowan stated that Amber Properties Company develops 
residential only. 
 
Mr. Amber briefly shared the history of his company and property ownership in nearby 
communities.  He addressed the tenant draw, architecture and style of the proposed 
development.  Mr. Amber said if the rezoning request is approved, it is his intent to 
submit a Preliminary Site Plan application in time for the Planning Commission meeting 
scheduled in February. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Subject property as relates to Master Plan and Office district designation. 
• Proposed five-story building height in relation to adjacent properties. 
• Rezoning Request only before Board; not conceptual site plan. 
• Walkability / attraction to Civic Center area. 
 
Mr. Amber circulated pictures of an existing development in Royal Oak and addressed 
the five-story building height.  He said a line of sight outline demonstrating the 
shadowing effect would be provided at the time of site plan review. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Craig Goldin of Cosmetic Dentistry Institute, 3415 Livernois, voiced opposition to the 
proposed rezoning.  He voiced concerns with the building height as relates to 
shadowing effect, street visibility and setbacks. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion continued on: 
• Allowable building heights and required setbacks for Office and Big Beaver zoning 

districts. 
• Double frontage of subject property; applicant determines front, side yards. 
• Flexible uses allowed in the Big Beaver zoning district. 
• Parcel(s) inclusive of the Big Beaver zoning designation in the Master Plan. 
• Intent of Zoning Ordinance to place building closer to street. 
• Challenge of infill development. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the conceptual site plan in terms of building form, parking and 
proposed site access point.  He indicated those details would be considered during site 
plan review, provided the Rezoning Request is approved, and he is confident the issues 
could be resolved.  Mr. Carlisle also noted that the applicant would be encouraged to 
pull the building closer to the presence on Town Center. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the proposed Rezoning Request would be announced to the City 
Council at their December 16 meeting and a Public Hearing would be scheduled on 
January 13, 2014. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-12-097 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O (Office) to BB (Big Beaver) rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Livernois, north of Town Center (3409 Livernois), in Section 21, being approximately 
1.22 acres in size, be approved, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The request complies with the Master Plan. 
2. The Form-Based District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of 

the property.  
3. The abundance of Office District property in the City has been well documented.  
4. The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
5. The site can be adequately served with municipal water and sewer.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he would not support the rezoning request because he has serious 
concerns with the type of use and development that could end up on the property.  He 
does not think the proposed development is a good and reasonable development as 
outlined, and would have preferred that a conditional rezoning application be submitted 
by the applicant. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Strat, Tagle 
No: Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz said his earlier comments reflect the basis for his no vote. 
 
Mr. Schepke said he has concerns with the building height and potential of other uses 
on the property. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he would have preferred more plan details and would have considered 
a conditional rezoning request. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living 

Facilities/Site Plan Review Standards 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed five recommendations for the Board’s consideration to address 
Zoning Ordinance language relating to the potential development of assisted living 
facilities. 
 
A brief discussion followed.   
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Omar Shouhayib, 4254 Beach, addressed development projects relating to elderly care 
and apartment/loft style residential. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Savidant said he would prepare appropriate draft Zoning Ordinance language and 
schedule a Public Hearing for the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 10, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Kempen announced his term has expired and he was not reappointed to the Board.  
He thanked his fellow commissioners for the enjoyable experience and their support. 
 
Board members commended and thanked Mr. Kempen for his service to the Board. 
 
Holiday wishes were exchanged. 
 

The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 12 10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PC 2013.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
DATE: January 9, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 745) – 

 Proposed Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts, West side of 
 Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), Section 21, From O 
 (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
The applicant, Amber Properties Company, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel from 
O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on this item on December 10, 2013 however the 300-foot mailing list was 
incorrect.  Therefore the Planning Commission must hold a public hearing that complies 
with public notice requirements. 
 
The site is within the Big Beaver classification in the City of Troy Master Plan.  This 
classification supports residential development along the Big Beaver Corridor.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the January 14, 2014 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4. Public comment 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 745  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts\PC Memo 01 14 2014.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 745) – Proposed Amber Town Center 
Townhomes and Lofts, West side of Livernois, North of Town Center (3409 Livernois), 
Section 21, From O (Office) District to BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O to BB rezoning request, located on the west side of Livernois, north of Town 
Center (3409 Livernois), in Section 21, being approximately 1.22 acres in size, be 
approved, for the following reasons: 
 

1) The request complies with the Master Plan 
2) The Form-Based District would permit greater flexibility in use and development 

of the property.  
3) The abundance of Office District property in the City has been well documented.  
4) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
5) The site can be adequately served with municipal water and sewer.  

 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 745  Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts\Proposed PC Resolution 01 14 2014.doc 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

15,568

1:

Feet15,5680 7,784



Z 745, Amber Town Center

1: 1,128

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

940188 188Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/19/2013

Legend:

Street Name Text



Z 745, Amber Town Center

1: 1,353

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1130226 226Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/11/2013

Legend:

Street Name Text

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



101

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Big Beaver Road: 

A World Class Boulevard

Home to large, landmark projects and • 
mixed-use regional destinations.
Central gathering area of the community.• 
A collection of international corporations, • 
local companies, and establishments which 
complement these high-visibility uses. 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible 
for the fi rst impression many people have 
throughout Michigan when they think of the 
City of Troy.    The high-rise buildings, Somerset 
Collection, and its immediate proximity to 
I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 
remember about the Corridor and the City.   In 

order to remain competitive and continue 

to be a leader in economic development 

in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for 

this Corridor to evolve in light of a changing 

economy.  In that spirit, the City adopted the 
key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study in 
2006:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 
Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 
Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 
Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - • 
Energetic Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a 
Focus on Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 
Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

The uses and character of this future 

land use category are driven by the 

recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study and subsequent eff orts of the Planning 

Commission to create new zoning techniques 

to implement those recommendations.

This Study provided a comprehensive analysis 
of the existing and potential characteristics 
of this important area.  The planned future 
land uses in the Big Beaver Corridor are in 
large part considered mixed-use, to allow for a 
wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a 
more meaningful contribution to the quality of 
life of the City.  The main diff erence between the 
various mixed-use districts planned in the Study 
is building height.  The intended characteristics 
of the various districts are also very diff erent, 
and are the topic of in-depth analysis in the 
Study.  Some important recommendations of 
that Study are listed below.  

Moving toward the creation of distinct • 
physical districts by building from lot line to 
lot line along the right-of-way rather than 
continuing to be a collection of isolated 
towers.    

Becoming fl exible with land use • 
relationships.  The use of vertically 
integrated mixed-use commercial, offi  ce 
and residential towers should be promoted.  
The use of prominent ground fl oor retail, 
restaurants and cafes allows visual interest 
and activity for visitors and residents.      

Contain parking in structures that are shared • 
by surrounding developments.  Do not allow 
off -street parking to be visible from major 
thoroughfares.  

Landscape Big Beaver and intersecting • 
thoroughfares with rows of mature trees.

BIG BEAVER ROAD



102 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
This will be a vibrant high-rise business and • 
residential district.  

Pedestrian use will be promoted through • 
massive landscaping, wide sidewalks, 
outdoor cafes, and public art.  

The Big Beaver Corridor Study and Big • 
Beaver Development Code provide for a 
specifi c land development pattern.   

Architectural design must create an • 
interesting visual experience for both 
sidewalk users at close range and for those 
viewing the skyline from a distance.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Parking should be located in rear yards.• 

Development should include intense street • 
tree planting along Big Beaver.

Cafes, plazas, parks and similar amenities to • 
draw pedestrians will be encouraged.

Buildings will frame the street network by • 
building to the front and side property lines.  
Exceptions for cafes, plazas and access roads 
may be permitted.  

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should rise in height toward • 
Crooks Road in the east-west direction.  

Buildings should rise in height toward Big • 
Beaver in the north-south direction.

Ground level stories should be a minimum of • 
twelve feet in height; with large expanses of 
transparent glass.  

Fenestration at the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing, and building 
caps or roofs should provide a visually 
interesting skyline.

Concept Sketch from the Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.

Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.



 
 
  

 Date: December 5, 2013 
 

 

Land Use and Zoning Analysis  
For 

Amber Properties - Troy, Michigan 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant Amber Properties 
 
Project Name: Amber Town Center   
 
Location: Northwest Corner of Town Center Dr. and Livernois Rd.    
 
Zoning: O, Office Building District 
 
Action Requested: Rezoning to Big Beaver Formal Based District   
 
Required Information:          Provided  
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION  
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning of a 1.21 acre vacant parcel from O – Office to Big 
Beaver (Form Based) District.  The applicants’ intent is to construct a residential project on the 
property which would be permitted in the Big Beaver District, based on the site and street 
types.  
 
Although a concept plan has been supplied, it is purely illustrative.  A more detailed site plan 
and other documents are required for preliminary site plan approval.   
 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 
 
The neighboring zoning and use to the north and west are Office, to the south is Community 
Facilities, and used as a park and across Livernois is residential but largely vacant.  
 



Amber Properties 12-5-13   

2 

 

 
 
 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site is located within the area designated as Big Beaver in the Master Plan.  The Big Beaver 
designation responds to the recommendations set forth in the Big Beaver Corridor Study, 
which promotes higher density, vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office, and 
residential uses.  The Plan encourages increased residential units along and in proximity to Big 
Beaver. Development of residential uses should be designed with a strong orientation towards 
the roadway corridor to support pedestrian activity and frame the street.    
 
Neighboring zoning, land use, and master plan designations are summarized in the following 
chart:  
 

 NORTH South  East West  

Zoning  O CF R-1F  O 
Land Use Office Park Vacant/Res.  Office  
Master Plan Big Beaver Public Residential Big Beaver  
 
 

Subject site 



Amber Properties 12-5-13   

3 

NATURAL RESOURCES  
 
The site is vacant and appears to have been previously graded.  There, it is devoid of any 
significant natural features.  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL   
 
The City has an abundance of land zoned and used for office purposes.  With the current 
vacancy rate, it is unlikely that office use of the property is reasonable.  
 
The full development potential of the site within the form based district will be determined 
through submission of a site plan.  However, this specific property is required to be designated 
as a Site Type C using Town Center (a collector) as its principal frontage.  Therefore, residential 
use is permitted.  In addition, Building Forms A-D are permitted.  
 
TRAFFIC IMPACT AND SITE ACCESS 
 
Due to the principal and sole access from Town Center, traffic impact is not expected to be an 
issue.  The location of access points on Town Center Drive will be reviewed during the site plan 
review process.   Cross-access to the north will be required in order to distribute traffic.   
 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
 
The site is served by municipal water and sewer.  All utility locations, as well as stormwater 
management will be considered during site plan review.  
 
OTHER 
 
The applicant has submitted a Concept Plan.  A Concept Plan is illustrative and not required to 
provide the detail necessary for a site plan review.   If the rezoning is granted, the applicant is 
encouraged to thoroughly review the building form requirements as set forth in Section 5.03 
and design standards set forth in Section 5.04 E.  The Concept Plan does not reflect 
consideration of all of these standards, including parking location along Livernois, ground story 
activation, and pedestrian orientation.  These are details that will be considered during the site 
plan review process, provided the rezoning is approved.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We would recommend approval of the subject rezoning for the following reasons: 
 

1) The request complies with the Master Plan 
2) The Form-Based District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of the 

property.  
3) The abundance of Office District property in the City has been well documented.  



Amber Properties 12-5-13   

4 

4) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
5) The site can be adequately served with municipal water and sewer.  

 
 
 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
 

 
 
225-02-1336 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Debra
To: Planning
Subject: Planning File No. Z 745 Amber Town Center Townhomes and Lofts
Date: Wednesday, January 08, 2014 5:31:20 PM

Planning Department -
 

I am writing on behalf of Mr. and Mrs. William Black who reside at

3364 Livernois.  They wish to express their concerns regarding the

consideration of the re-zoning for the Amber Town Center

Townhomes and Lofts.
 

Mr. and Mrs. William Black are not in favor of a five story residential

building at the corner of Town Center Drive and Livernois. 
 

It will greatly affect the traffic flow more than a business would at that

corner.  It would definitely need to be reviewed for safety because of

the park directly across the street and the busy sidewalk crossing. 

You are already aware that Towncenter Drive accommodates traffic

for the city offices, library, tennis courts, outdoor swim area,

recreational trails, community center and various businesses.  The

Towncenter Drive intersection at Livernois and the out let on to Big

Beaver are extremely busy already.  Why would you want to add

"living quarters" to such a congested area?
 

It will also set the precedence for future development in the area.  The

undeveloped land across the road may be subject to the same type of

structure. It is important to develop residential areas - that is

understood - but keep residential as residential.  It is not part of the

Big Beaver Corridor!
 

Thank you.
 

Sincerely,
 

Mr. and Mrs. William Black

mailto:DBlack7701@wowway.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


PC 2014.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – 

Proposed Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of 
Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 

 
The applicant, MGM Restoration, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel from R-1C One 
Family Residential District to CB Community Business District.  The vacant lot is 
approximately 10,500 square feet in area.  The applicant indicated their intent to 
construct a two-story office building on the site.  Offices are permitted by right in the CB 
district; the present R-1C district does not permit offices.   
 
The Planning Commission considered this rezoning on February 14, 2012 and 
recommended denial of the application, based on the potential for negative impacts on 
the residential neighborhood to the west.  The applicant was encouraged to combine 
the subject property with the abutting property to the east.  The applicant has done so, 
after a lengthy bidding and acquisition process. 
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Rochester Road.  A description of this 
classification is attached.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the January 14, 2014 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4. Concept drawing 
5. Minutes from February 14, 2012 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 739  Professional Medical Building  Sec 22\2013 Application\PC Memo 01 14 14.doc 

 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – Proposed 
Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of Colebrook (3545 
Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB 
(Community Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to CB rezoning request, located west of Rochester on the south side of 
Colebrook, within Section 22, being approximately 10,500 square feet in size, be 
approved for the following reasons: 

1) The parcels were combined to create one developable parcel for the purpose of 
building a medical office.  Combining the parcels creates a larger developable 
parcel that permits a property buffer and transition between the single-family 
neighborhood to the west and Rochester Road.  

2) The request complies with the Master Plan 
3) The CB, Commercial Business District would permit greater flexibility in use and 

development of the property.  
4) The site has been vacant for single-family residential use.  
5) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
6) The site is adequately served with municipal water and sewer. 

 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 739  Professional Medical Building  Sec 22\2012 Application\2013 Application\Proposed PC 
Resolution 01 14 2014.doc 



Z 739 Professional/Medical Building

1: 1,015

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

850169 169Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/10/2014

Legend:

Street Name Text



Z 739  Professional/Medical Building

1: 902

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

750150 150Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

12/9/2013

Legend:

Street Name Text

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



103

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Rochester Road: 

Green Corridor

Regional model for a green corridor• 
A strong focus on access management• 
Heightened emphasis on strong stormwater • 
management techniques
Retail catering to regional traffi  c• 
Innovative site design techniques applied • 
through PUD use to allow for redevelopment 
for shallow lots

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffi  c 
causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road 
north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of 
Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and offi  ce near 
the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.     

If Rochester Road is to have a defi ned 

role and pleasing character in the City, it 

must undergo a signifi cant transformation 

over time.  Ultimately, the Rochester Road 
Corridor will become a regional showcase 
for eff ective stormwater management and 
enhancement of the natural environment, while 
encouraging a combination of high-quality 
land uses.   Eff ective landscaping focused on 

native plantings, and improved land use and 
access management along Rochester will create 
a green corridor that provides a high level 
of service for motorists, and which provides 
an eff ective natural buff er between high 
traffi  c volumes and people visiting adjacent 
properties.  The creation of this green corridor 
would occur primarily in the right-of-way along 
road frontages and in the median of a future 
boulevard.  

While the emphasis on innovative 

stormwater management is specifi cally called 

on for the Rochester Road Corridor, new 

low-impact techniques are to be encouraged 

elsewhere throughout the City of Troy.  As 
noted in Chapter 7, innovative stormwater 
management is a priority for the community.  
Rochester Road will play an important role in 
this City-wide initiative by proving a regional 
showcase for such techniques.

New construction along the corridor may 
include detention and retention basins 
that work together from site-to-site with 
other features to create a continuous, linear 
landscape feature.  By connecting properties, 
the basins create visual relief from traffi  c.  
Low impact development methods will 

be used throughout the corridor to fi lter 

stormwater runoff .   Rochester Road will also be 
characterized by eff ective new signage, high-
quality lighting, and eff ective, complementary 
site and architectural design. 

Uses along Rochester Road will include a 
variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” 
pattern where the most intense mixed-use or 
exclusively non-residential development will 
occur near the Neighborhood Nodes situated 
along its main intersections.  Lower-impact 
uses, such as small scale retail or condominiums 
should be encouraged along the corridor 
frontage between these nodes.

ROCHESTER ROAD



104 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Commercial strip development should be • 
limited and gradually replaced with mixed 
use.

Commercial development should be • 
encouraged to expand in the form of dense 
multi-story mixed-use concentrations 
at major intersections.  Concentrations 
are limited to within 1,000 feet of the 
intersection.  

The areas between nodes should develop as • 
lower-rise offi  ce and multiple-family.    The 
height diff erences encourage a visual “pulse.”

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Parking areas should be within rear yards • 
or interior parts of the site.  A single row of 
parking may be appropriate in front and 
exterior side yards in limited applications.

Parking will connect to adjacent sites, • 
eventually linking several developments 
with a rear access lane.  The number of 
drives connecting to Rochester Road should 
be minimized.

Defi ned internal walks will connect the • 
businesses and buildings together.

Internal walks will be connected to the • 
public sidewalk system.

Buildings will be separated from street traffi  c • 
by a greenbelt or sculptural storm water 
detention basin. 

Height and size of signage will be reduced • 
to contain visual clutter.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

The height at nodes will be multi-story not • 
exceeding four stories.       

The height between nodes should not • 
exceed two stories.

Ground level stories should be, at a • 
minimum, twelve feet in height; with large 
expanses of transparent glass at intersection 
nodes.  

Fenestration for the ground level of • 
buildings in nodes will be accentuated 
through the use of awnings, overhangs or 
trim detailing.  

Design for a Rain Garden in Troy; City of Troy

Lovell Pond in Troy; an example of an innovative, urban 
stormwater basin; Photo by Jennifer Lawson



 

 

 
 Date: February 9, 2012 
  January 7, 2014 
 
 

 Rezoning Analysis   
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
Applicant: Steve Muci 
  
Project Name: 970 Colebrook Professional/Medical Building Rezoning 
 
Location: 3545 Rochester Road (formerly 970 Colebrook) 
 
Current Zoning: R-1C, Single Family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Rezoning to CB, Commercial Business 
 
Required Information: As noted in review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The applicant is seeking the rezoning of a portion of 3545 Rochester Road to develop a medical office 
building.  3545 Rochester has split zoning.  The eastern section of the parcel that fronts on Rochester 
Road is zoned CB, Commercial Business.  The western portion, which was formally 970 Colebrook, has 
R1-C zoning.  In 2012, the applicant had requested a rezoning of 970 Colebrook.  The Planning 
Commission recommended denial of the rezoning request and recommended that the applicant 
combine with the lot on Rochester to create one developable parcel.    
 
In 2013, the applicant combined the two parcels to create one developable parcel for the purpose of 
building a medical office.  A medical office cannot be built on the combined parcel because the western 
portion of the parcel is zoned R-1C, Single Family Residential District.  The applicant seeks a rezoning of 
the western portion of the parcel to CB, Community Business District.  If the rezoning is approved, the 
applicant will submit for a site plan review for the medical office building.     
 
 
 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 2 

 

 
 
ZONING and LAND USE 
 
To the west is a single family home, to the south and east are commercial projects, and to the north is 
the walled parking lot of a former office building that was approved for a Gaucho Steakhouse 
development.  The zoning, land use and Master Plan designations for the surrounding parcels are shown 
in the table below:  
 

 Zoning Land Use Master Plan 

North 
P, Parking and GB, General 
Business 

Parking / Commercial  Rochester Road 

South CB, Commercial Business Commercial  Rochester Road 
East CB, Commercial Business Commercial Rochester Road 
West R-1C, One-Family Residential  Single-family homes Single Family Residential 

 
Since the western parcel has been combined with the portion of the parcel on the Rochester Road, a 
rezoning would be consistent with surrounding properties.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
PREVIOUS PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this rezoning in 2012.  Due to potential impacts upon the 
interior neighborhood including creating an additional curb-cut on Colebrook the application was 

• Parcel portion zoned CB 
 
• Parcel portion zoned R1-C 

(formerly 970 Colebrook) 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 3 

recommended for denial.  In the deliberation, the Planning Commission noted that they would support 
the rezoning if the applicant were able to obtain the corner parcel and combine to create one parcel.   
 
In our 2012 staff report we noted that redevelopment of this site for non-residential purposes is 
appropriate only if the following conditions are met: (1) The proposed use and design does not have a 
significant negative impact on the abutting residential property and neighborhood; and (2) The site is 
appropriately screened from the abutting residential property.  By combing the two parcels into one 
developable parcel, the applicant is able to mitigate the two aforementioned concerns.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The subject site lies in the Rochester Road future land use category, on the edge of the Single-Family 
Residential category. The intent of the Rochester Road future land use category is described in the 
Master Plan as follows: 
 

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffic causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and office near the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.      
 
Uses along Rochester Road will include a variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” pattern 
where the most intense mixed-use or exclusively non-residential development will occur near the 
Neighborhood Nodes situated along its main intersections.  Lower-impact uses, such as small 
scale retail or condominiums should be encouraged along the corridor frontage between these 
nodes. 

 
The Rochester Road category is designed to have “soft edges,” that is, it does not closely follow parcel 
lines and is intended to be applied to a wide variety of sites having access to Rochester Road.  Now that 
the western portion of the parcel has been combined with the corner parcel on Rochester Road, the 
combined parcel will provide an appropriate transition between Rochester Road and the adjacent 
single-family residential neighborhood. The proposed rezoning to CB, Commercial Business is consistent 
with the overall goals of the Master Plan and the specific recommendations for this area.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 
The applicant has submitted a conceptual site plan.  The submitted site plan is not binding but portrays 
the conceptual layout that the applicant proposes to develop the site.  The applicant has addressed 
many of the concerns of our previous review and the Planning Commission including: 

• Providing only one curb cut on Colebrook 
• Placing the building adjacent to Rochester Road 
• Placing parking in the rear of the site 
• Landscape buffer along western (residential) property line 
• Future cross-access to property to the south 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 4 

 
Though conceptual site plan and not binding there are requirements in the Zoning Ordinance that will 
be addressed through the Site Plan review process such as screening and buffering that ensure 
protection of the adjacent single-family properties.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is not previously developed, but is essentially devoid of significant natural features.  There are 
some existing overgrown landscaping materials. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
STANDARDS OF REVIEW 
 
Section 16.03 C. states that a rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and determination that all 
of the following are satisfied: 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in material 
conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following: 

a. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
b. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
c. An error in the Master Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity. 

3. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development. 

4. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, or welfare. 

5. The rezoning will ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

The rezoning of the subject site to CB, Commercial Business is in compliance with the City of Troy Master 
Plan.  Further, it is consistent with the development pattern of this area of the City, and will not be a 
detriment to the public health, safety or welfare, and will not burden public services and facilities. 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
We would recommend approval of the subject rezoning for the following reasons: 

1) The parcels were combined to create one developable parcel for the purpose of building a 
medical office.  Combining the parcels creates a larger developable parcel that permits a 
property buffer and transition between the single-family neighborhood to the west and 
Rochester Road.  

2) The request complies with the Master Plan 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 5 

3) The CB, Commercial Business District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of 
the property.  

4) The site has been vacant for single-family residential use.  
5) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
6) The site is adequately served with municipal water and sewer. 

   
   

 
   
   

 



PARKING REQUIREMENTS

OFFICE: 

3381 / 300 = 12 CARS

MEICAL OFFICE:

3381 / 200 = 17 CARS

TOTAL REQUIRED: 29 CARS

TOTAL PROVIDED: 29 CARS

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

N



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 14, 2012 
  
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – 
Proposed Professional/Medical Building, South side of Colebrook, West of 
Rochester Road between Big Beaver and Wattles (970 Colebrook), Section 22, 
From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) 
District 
 
Zak Branigan summarized the rezoning report. 
 
There was general discussion of this item. 
 
Artur Kokaj, 17106 Addington Drive, Commerce Township, MI, representing the 
applicant, discussed the project with the Planning Commission. 
 
The conditional rezoning process was discussed with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dennis Bushon, 3515 Rochester Road, encouraged the applicant to combine the 
subject parcel with the abutting parcel to the east, located on the corner of 
Colebrook and Rochester Road. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz stated the rezoning had the potential to be detrimental to the 
residential neighborhood to the east. 
 
Chair Maxwell agreed with Mr. Schultz and added that he had concern with the 
potential negative impacts on the elementary school located in the neighborhood.  
He stated he would support a rezoning if the subject parcel were to be combined 
with the property fronting on Rochester Road. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-02-008 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CB rezoning request, located west of Rochester on the 
south side of Colebrook, within Section 22, being approximately 10,500 square 
feet in size, be denied. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Ullmann 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



  PC 2014.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File 

Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living Facilities 
 
 
During the site plan review process for the Oakland Troy Senior Project assisted living 
facility, many residents expressed concern regarding the potential of an assisted living 
facility being developed in inappropriate areas, specifically within single-family 
residential neighborhoods.  City Council members expressed the same concern during 
numerous public meetings.  Based on these comments, the development of draft text 
amendment language is considered a priority by City Council. 
 
The attached memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
issue.  The Planning Commission discussed this memo at the December 10, 2013 
Planning Commission Regular meeting.  The board agreed with the recommendations 
in the memo and directed the Planning Department to put the suggested revisions in 
ordinance form.   
 
The draft text amendment is attached.  The attached map identifies potential assisted 
living facility sites, should the draft text amendment be approved. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Report prepared by CWA 
2. Draft text amendment 
3. Map 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\PC Memo 01 14 2013.doc 



 
PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living 
Facilities 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles 2, 4, and 6 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes 
miscellaneous provisions related to assisted living facilities, be amended as printed on 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\Proposed PC Resolution 01 14 2014.doc 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: December 2, 2013 
 
RE: Assisted Living Zoning Regulations  
 
 
Due to questions regarding compatibility between Assisted Living Facilities and adjacent single-family 
properties, the City Council has requested that the Planning Commission review potential Zoning 
Ordinance amendments.  The City Council has requested the Planning Commission to consider these 
amendments expeditiously so that regulations may be in place prior to the submission of another 
Assisted Living Facility application.  This memo presents recommendations of additional regulations 
based on review of current regulations, review of best practices, and direction from the City Council and 
Planning Commission.   
 

CURRENT REGULATIONS:  
 
The current regulations for Assisted Living are controlled by the Use Table as set forth in Section 4.21; 
Specific Use Standards set forth in Section 6.25; and height, lot coverage and setback requirements of 
the Multiple Family Districts as set forth in Section 4.08.   
 
Regulations Summary: 

• Permitted use in R1 A-E, Single-Family Residential; RT, One-Family Attached Residential;  MF, 
Multi-Family Residential; UR, Urban Residential; CF, Community Facility;  CB, Commercial 
Business; GB, General Business; IB, Integrated Business, and OM, Office Mixed Use.   

• Density requirements: 
o 2,000 sq/ft lot area per unit for one bedroom  
o 2,500 sq/ft lot area per unit for two bedrooms 

• Maximum height: 2 stories and 25-feet 
• Setbacks:  

o Front, Side, and Rear: 30 feet 
• Lot Coverage: 35% 
• Parking Locations 

o Not permitted in front yard 
o Setback at least 20 feet from side and rear property lines 

 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
A tenant of the Zoning Ordinance is the protection of single-family residential properties.  In order to 
better protect single-family residential properties, we recommend the Planning Commission consider 
the following amendments to regulate Assisted Living Facilities: 
 

1. Amend Definition of Assisted Living to Include Memory Care.  Adding memory care to the 
Assisted Living definition would clarify the components that are permitted under Assisted Living 
use category.     
 

2. Require Assisted Living as a Special Use in all R1 Districts.  A Special Use permit requires 
notification and a public hearing.  Furthermore, a Special Use permit allows the Planning 
Commission to review the project under the Special Use standards, which ensure mitigation of 
impacts upon adjacent properties.    
 

3. Require that all Assisted Living facilities be located adjacent to major arterial and that all site 
access is located off a major arterial.   Such requirement would 1) ensure that these facilities are 
located on major mile roads, which can accommodate increased site activity including traffic; 2) 
ensure that those facilities are not located in the interior of a single-family subdivision; and 3) 
reduce neighborhood cut-through traffic.  
 

4. Require a minimum of three (3) acres per site.  Requiring a minimum of three (3) acres per site 
will ensure that sites are large enough to provide adequate transitions, buffers, and setbacks.   
In discussion with Assisted Living developers and operators, they note that sites less than three 
(3) acres are typically not market feasible for such use due to their limited size.  
 

5. Require a 50-foot greenbelt buffer adjacent to any land zoned or used for residential purposes.  
This buffer is similar to what is required for Places of Worship.  Such buffer will provide an 
appropriate transition to adjacent single-family properties.   

 
The attached map indicates the potential properties upon which an Assisted Living Facility could be 
developed. 
 

RECOMMENDED TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
New language is underlined.  Removed language is struck through.  
 
Section 2.02: Definition:  
 
ASSISTED LIVING: A dependent elderly housing facility without cooking facilities and only central dining 
service. Limited medical care, including memory care, may be provided. is available. 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

 
 
Section 4.21: Use Table:  
 
The table is as follows:  
 

 
Section 6.25: Specific Use Standards: 
 

A. The maximum allowable density varies by housing type, but shall not exceed the following: 
1. Dwellings may be provided for as single-family detached, two-family or multiple-family 

units. When such dwellings contain kitchens, the minimum site area requirements for 
purposes of calculating density shall be as follows:  

i. Dwelling Unit Size Site Area/Unit (Square Feet)  
ii. Efficiency/one (1) bedroom 2,000  

iii. Two (2) bedroom 2,500  
iv. Each additional bedroom 500 additional 

2. Where facilities do not contain kitchen facilities within individual dwelling units, the site 
area per bed shall be one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet. 

B. Height, lot coverage and setback requirements of the MF Districts as set forth in Section 4.08, 
Multiple Family Residential Requirements shall apply. 

C. Parking is not allowed in any required front yard. Parking is permitted in side and rear yards 
provided a minimum twenty (20) foot setback is observed. 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P, S P, S P P NP P, S NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes Only 
Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

D. The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets, 
residentially zoned or used property, and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet. Façade articulation or 
architectural design variations for building walls facing the street are required to ensure that the 
building is not monotonous in appearance. Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); 
cornices, varying building materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a single 
building. 

E. The drop-off / pick-up of residents shall be provided at the front entrance of the building with a 
covered canopy. 

F. 
G. 

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres.   

H. 

Frontage on major arterial street shall be required.  All site access must be provided on a major 
arterial street. 

 

A 50-foot greenbelt buffer shall be provided adjacent to any land zoned or used for residential 
purposes. Such greenbelt shall be maintained as landscaped open space and shall not include 
any buildings, parking, or drive-aisles.  

 
Section 4.08: Multiple Family:  
 
No recommended amendments.   

 
 

 
  
Attachment: 
1. Map 



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Revise the following definition in Section 2.02 to read as follows:  
 
ASSISTED LIVING: A dependent elderly housing facility without cooking facilities in 
individual rooms and with only central dining service. Limited medical care  is available, 
including memory care, may be provided.  
 
 
Revise the following table in Section 4.21 to read as follows:  
 

 
Revise Section 6.25 to read as follows: 
 

A. The maximum allowable density varies by housing type, but shall not exceed the 
following: 

1. Dwellings may be provided for as single-family detached, two-family or 
multiple-family units. When such dwellings contain kitchens, the minimum 
site area requirements for purposes of calculating density shall be as 
follows:  

i. Dwelling Unit Size Site Area/Unit (Square Feet)  
ii. Efficiency/one (1) bedroom 2,000  
iii. Two (2) bedroom 2,500  
iv. Each additional bedroom 500 additional 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P, S P, 
S 

P P NP P, 
S 

NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 



2. Where facilities do not contain kitchen facilities within individual dwelling 
units, the site area per bed shall be one thousand five hundred (1,500) 
square feet. 

B. Height, lot coverage and setback requirements of the MF Districts as set forth in 
Section 4.08, Multiple Family Residential Requirements shall apply. 

C. Parking is not allowed in any required front yard. Parking is permitted in side and 
rear yards provided a minimum twenty (20) foot setback is observed. 

D. The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public 
streets, residentially zoned or used property, and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet. 
Façade articulation or architectural design variations for building walls facing the 
street are required to ensure that the building is not monotonous in appearance. 
Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); cornices, varying building 
materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a single building. 

E. The drop-off / pick-up of residents shall be provided at the front entrance of the 
building with a covered canopy. 

F. 
G. 

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres.   

H. 

Frontage on a major arterial street shall be required.  All site access shall be 
provided on a major arterial street. 

 

A 50-foot greenbelt buffer shall be provided adjacent to any land zoned or used 
for residential purposes. Such greenbelt shall be maintained as landscaped open 
space and shall not include any buildings, parking, or drive-aisles.  

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\ZOTA 246 PC Public Hearing Draft 01 14 2013.doc 



Based on proposed minimum development standards including location on major arterial and 3-acre minimum site

I
12/04/2013

Legend
Special Use
Permitted Use
Major Arterial

POTENTIAL ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY SITES



  PC 2014.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 8 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: January 10, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hunters Park, 

21 units/lots, East side of John R between Tucker and Mayflower (5390 John R), 
Section 12, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
The petitioner Mondrian Properties Hunters Park LLC submitted the above referenced 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a 21-unit site condominium.  The property is 
currently zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for site condominium applications.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.   City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Hunters Park Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Hunters Park  Sec 12\PC Memo 01 14 2014.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hunters Park, 21 
units/lots, East side of John R between Tucker and Mayflower (5390 John R), Section 12, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Hunters Park Site 
Condominium, 21 units/lots, East side of John R, between Tucker and Mayflower, 
Section 12, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, 
subject to the following: 
 

1. Identify landscape treatment of the stub 
2. Update site date calculations 

____________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Hunters Park  Sec 12\Proposed Resolution 2014 01 14.doc 



Hunters Park Site Condominium

1: 2,481

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2070413 413Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/14/2013

Legend:

Street Name Text



Hunters Park Site Condominium

1: 2,819

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2350470 470Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

11/14/2013

Legend:

Street Name Text

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

 
 
 

 Date:  January 3, 2014 
 

 

Site Condominium Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Joe Maniaci 
 
Project Name: Hunters Park 
 
Plan Date: November 15, 2013 
 
Location: East side of John R Road  
 
Zoning: R1-C, One-family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Site Condominium Approval 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a site condominium application which includes a site plan, landscape plan, 
topographic survey, and application forms.  The proposed development is a twenty-one (21) unit single 
family detached site condominium project on a 7.92 acre site.  The proposed residential use is permitted 
in the R-1C District.  The project shares access off John R. Road with the Bridgewater Estates site 
condominium development to the north.  The development of Hunters Park includes the development 
of a new public road.  
 
  



Hunters Park  
January 3, 2014 

2 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
 
East side of John R Road. 
 
 

 
Size of Subject Property: 
 
The parcel is 7.92 acres in area 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
 
The subject property has one (1) existing home.  
 
Current Zoning: 
 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One-family Residential District.  
 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
South R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
East R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
West R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 

 

• Bridgewater Estates 
 

o Shared Access  
 

• Hunters Park 
 



Hunters Park  
January 3, 2014 

3 

SITE ARRANGEMENT, ACCESS, and CIRCULATION 
 
The applicant is applying the lot size averaging option, permitted and regulated by Section 10.01.   The 
lots range in size between 10,197 to 17,403 square feet and the average lot size is 11,007 square feet.   
The proposed lots are regular in shape, allow for adequate setbacks, and permit sufficient space for the 
homes and ingress and egress for each unit.  
 
The project shares access off John R. Road with the Bridgewater site condominium development to the 
north.  The development will be served by a new public road, which runs perpendicular to John R. Road. 
The new road is stubbed at the end to provide access should the parcels to the south ever be developed.  
The applicant should incorporate some type of landscape treatment to both improve the visual 
appearance of the stub and prevent motorists from driving into the adjacent property to the south.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Identify landscape treatment of the stub. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Table 4.06.C establishes the requirements for the R-1C District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 

*The lot size average option has been applied and Section 10.01 standards have been met. 
 
The site data notes twenty-two (22) units, however the Site Plan shows twenty-one (21) units.  The site 
data information needs to be updated.  
 
Items to be addressed: Update site date calculations. 
  

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Front 30 feet 30 feet Complies 

Rear 40 feet 40 feet Complies 

Side 10 feet 10 feet Complies 

Average Lot Size per 
Unit* 

10,500 sq/ft w/sewer 11,007 sq/ft Complies 

Minimum Lot Size* 9,450  sq/ft 10,197  sq/ft Complies 

Lot Width* 76.5 feet 85 feet Complies 

Maximum Height 2 ½ stories 2 stories Complies 

Maximum Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

30% 24% Complies 

Minimum Floor Area 
per Unit 

1,200  sq/ft 1,714 sq/ft Complies 



Hunters Park  
January 3, 2014 

4 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Topography – The grading plan shows a gradual slope down from east to west.  The proposed detention 
pond is set in a natural low point.   
 
Woodlands –The site is encumbered with numerous tree cover.  The tree survey shows considerable 
diversity in tree species and many mature trees on the site.  The applicant proposes to clear the entire 
site.  

Wetlands/Flood Plan – The front 
portion of the site is located within 
the 100 year flood plain.  A 
detailed topographic survey of the 
site will determine how much of 
the proposed development is 
within the 100 year floodplain.  
Any areas filled within the 
floodplain would have to provide a 
compensating cut elsewhere on 
the site, DEQ permits would have 
to be obtained and the 
appropriate FEMA approvals 
would be required. 
 
The Engineering Department notes 
that the applicant can provide the 
compensating cuts within a 
developable lot.  They do not anticipate any significant alteration to the site plan to compensate for any 
flood plain mitigation. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The Landscape Plan includes a mixture of evergreen and deciduous trees. All proposed species fall 
within Troy regulations and are not prohibited.  Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are 
regulated by Section 13.02.F.2.  
 
 Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Frontage Screening  
 
 

1 tree every 10-feet 
along John R. Road.   
300 feet = 30 trees 

30 Compliant 

Greenbelt Street Trees  1 tree for every 50 
linear feet. 2,228 feet = 
45 trees 

45 Compliant 

 
Items to be Addressed: None.    



Hunters Park  
January 3, 2014 

5 

 
STORMWATER DETENSION 
 
A stormwater detention area is provided for this property along John R. Road.  The size and depth of the 
detention basin may change based on the required compensation cut as a result of being located within 
the 100 year floodplain.  This is an item that is addressed during the final engineering review.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 10.02 sets forth the intent and standards for site condominium projects.   
 
1. Intent:  The intent of this Section is to regulate site condominium projects to ensure compliance 
with this Ordinance and other applicable standards of the City, to provide procedures and standards 
for review and approval or disapproval of such developments, and to insure that each project will be 
consistent and compatible with other developments in the community. 
 
The proposed site condominium project is consistent and compatible with other developments in the 
community, and more importantly adjacent properties.  The proposed development meets the intent 
of the Site Condominium section of the ordinance.  
 
Section 10.02.E. regulates physical improvements associated with condominium projects.  It requires the 
following:  
 
1. Principal access and circulation through a site condominium shall be provided by public streets 
constructed to City standards, within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way. Secondary access and circulation 
through such developments, on which some of the residential parcels may have their sole frontage, may 
be provided by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within 
forty (40) foot private easements for public access. The applicant has provided a 60-foot wide public 
right-of-way.   All lots front on the 60-foot right-of-way.   
 
2. Principal access to site condominium of five (5) acres or less in area may be provided by way of 
twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within forty (40) foot 
private easements for public access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is 
such that the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels is impractical. Not applicable. 
 
3. All entrances to major or secondary thoroughfares shall include deceleration, acceleration and passing 
lanes as required by Engineering Standards of the City of Troy. Satisfied. 
 
4. Sidewalks shall be constructed, in accordance with City Standards, across the frontage of all dwelling 
unit parcels. Utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved as to size 
and location by the City Engineer. Satisfied. 
 
5. All shall be served by public water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and detention/retention systems 
constructed to City standards, at the expense of the developer. Easements over these systems shall be 
conveyed and recorded before occupancy permits are issued for dwelling units. The applicant has 



Hunters Park  
January 3, 2014 

6 

proposed full utilities, but all proposed configurations and easements are subject to approval by the 
City engineering department. 
 
As noted above, all condominium projects are subject to Section 8.05.A.7, which establishes the 
requirements for a preliminary site plan submittal.  Three additional requirements are specifically 
identified for residential projects. The three additional requirements, identified in 8.05.A.7.o, include: 
 
i. Calculation of the dwelling unit density allowable and a statement of the number of dwelling units, by 
type, to be provided. Satisfied. 
 
ii. Topography on site and fifty (50) feet beyond, drawn at two (2) foot contour intervals, with existing 
drainage courses, flood plains, wetlands, and tree stands indicated. Satisfied. 
 
iii. The typical floor plans and elevations of the proposed buildings, with building height(s). Satisfied. 
 
Items to be Addressed: none 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We recommend that the Planning Commission approve the preliminary site condominium application, 
as conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following requirements as part of the final site plan 
submittal: 
 

1. Identify landscape treatment of the stub 
2. Update site date calculations 

 
#225-02-1334 

 

Cc:  Joseph Maniaci (JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com) 

 

mailto:JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com�

























	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	December 10, 2013

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 745)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (3)
	Master Plan Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report
	Public Comment

	6. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Master Plan Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report
	Concept Drawing
	February 14, 2012 Minutes Excerpt

	7. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 246)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Planning Consultant Report
	Draft Text Amendment
	Map Sites

	8. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW HUNTERS PARK
	Planning Department Memorandum 
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan Submittal

	9. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



